CITY OF PINE LAKE
AGENDA
August 31, 2021
7:00 PM
Council Chambers
459 Pine Drive Pine Lake, GA

Call to Order
Announcements/Communication
Adoption of Agenda
PUBLIC HEARING

2021 Comprehensive Plan

CONSENT AGENDA

Adoption of the Minutes of the regular meeting of August 10, 2021.

NEW BUSINESS
Authorization to Transmit the 2021 Comprehensive Plan.
Authorization for Mayor Hammet to sign a letter transmitting the 2021 Comprehensive
Plan.

Extension of Open Beach/Lake Season
Consideration of extending the open Beach/Lake season into September, 2021.

Employee Group Health Insurance Renewal.
Recommend authorizing the Mayor to sign the necessary documents to provide
employee group health benefits.

Closing Date for Pine Lake Porch Portraits Exhibit.

DISCUSSION
Foodwell Grant Implementation/Beach House Entrance/Beach Entrance

Gazebo



REPORTS AND OTHER BUSINESS
Public Comments

Staff

Mayor and City Council

Information for “The Pine Lake News” eblast.

Adjournment






ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

City Council

Melanie Hammet, Mayor
Brandy Beavers

Tracey Brantley

Jean Bordeaux, Mayor Pro Tem
Brandy Hall

Augusta Woods

Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee

Jean Bordeaux, Mayor Pro Tem
David Burt

Melanie Hammet, Mayor

Megan Pulsts

Thomas Ramsey

Augusta Woods

Sarai Y"Hudah-Green, Chief of Police

City of Pine Lake Staff

Peggy Merriss - Acting City Administrator
Sarai Y'Hudah-Green - Chief of Police

Atlanta Regional Commission Staff

Anna Baggett, Senior Planner
Mollie Bogle, Senior Planner

A > c ) This document was prepared by the Atlanta Regional Commission.

atama regionat commissin - nless otherwise noted, all photos were taken by ARC staff.

2| City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Atlanta Regional Commission




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Summary
Chapter 1: Data and Demographics
Chapter 2: Community Input
Community Vision
Community Feedback
Chapter 3: Issues, Opportunities, & Policies
Chapter 4: Areas of Attention
Chapter 5: Character Areas & Narrative
_Chapter 6: Transportation
Chapter 7: Broadband
Chapter 8: Report of Accomplishments

Chapter 8: Community Work Program

3| City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Atianta Regionat Commission




4 | Cityof Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

LAKE

Qs alnal Halil

Tt GEORGIA

Pine Lake Is a strongly.connected
community where individuals are valued.

It elevates the arts, the environment,
and civic participation. To sustain these
values, Pine Lake will plan growth and
maintain the environment while improving
services, city finances, and quality.of life
for our residents.

Attanta Regional Commission




=
%
e
. -
geresford [ : 5
B <
= =
o
Perzg, -
g ¢y .
@
@/‘5_
3y
Watting 0
’_{4} : \,{\E‘*Rd
LA
hehey Ly
ey
pdfontSt
<
ifosE %
e A
2 e
¢ @
£ &
g
g
=
=
=
=
(23
i
m‘ﬁ
?\ = B m\ﬂ
3
=
£
Rea Saipe - :
.‘33, £ :
e E 2
2 g
S'zep’ 7
il i
. i Cmsw;g Viay
Wt p
%,
0,(;; i
2 Ao, i~
% WOJ:‘?JESI Mangy O

§ | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

&
=
2,
=
2

%
f?‘ bg
o~ o
/ & = H””“W
A S ﬁv
“4%5? ; 8.5 % /'?5'%,
%\x\%?l
F’a}rsm‘i\g‘\
.Ei‘
z Aberdeen La
o
c{%
=
<
Ty
“Creek Cir =
- sage 1t g
A5y g 2
=
Keighys
‘o
=
{?».
&
i A‘Eig,‘,‘e}, o é.?
o3 =%
alrchar & i
s =
; %,
© PINE LAKE
“Togunod Rt Plutm Dichaig ¢y
?; b
i 2 = Eberline 1
= B & £ =
£ g =
“ Farest Rd = Forrest-Rd Rendaluuod B: 1
= Randalyond Ct
=
= £
2 Paplarfd &
= DGERD - B
o = = Lo o
() 5 Ei ”
= B kS & -
g ooy, % T
= o @ Gl
= % &
Migafc-d Py ’% =
= i s ¥ ey
- E  Arborak ™ s *
Allgond Ter = ; r§ 2
i V498 Cotiier Walk
i) 0.25 MILES

Atlanta Regiona. Commission



CHAPTER1




POPULATION

Pine Lake's current population is 749 accerding to American Community Survey [ACS) 2019 estimates. Pine Lake's
population has remained consistently around 750 since 2010 with a slight dip in 2014. Population forecasts predict
very slight decline in the next five years.

Historic and Projected Population Change in the City of Pine Lake from 2000 to 2025
ACS b-Year Estimates 2000-2019, Esri Business Analyst Projections 2020-2025

900
600

R AC E City of Pine Lake Racial Compostien, 2010 & 2019
ACS b-Year Estimates 2010 & 2019

White people make up 73.3% of the racial distribution
in Pine Lake as of 2019 ACS estimates. Black people
make up 22.6%, Asian people are 1.2% of the
population, and those of two or more races are 2.9% of
the population.

People of Hispanic origin of any race are 4£.27% of the
population.

Since 2010, the share of white residents has increased
as the share of black and those identifying as “other”
has declined.

wWhite = Black = Asian = Other = Two or More Races

7| City of Pine Lake 2027 Comprehensive Plan Update Atlanta Regional Cominission



AGE

Over 50% of Pine Lake's population is above the
age of 45. More specifically, a quarter of Pine
Lake's population is between the age of 45 and 54.
Understandably, the average age in Pine Lake is
48.4 years old. Since 2010, the average age has
increased by 6 years. This change indicates that the
proportion of middle-aged and older residents has
increased while the proportion of younger residents
has decreased. As of 2019 estimates, only a quarter
of residents are below the age of 35.

City of Pine Lake Average Age 2010 & 2019

ACS b-Year Estimates 2010 & 2019

City of Pine Lake Age Distribution
ACS 5-Year Estimates 2019

2019

E Under 14 = 15-24 ®= 75-34 m 3b-44 m 45-b4 = bb-64 m g+

8 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Camprehensive Plan Update Attanta Regional Commission



9| Cityof Fine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

HOUSING DEMAND & VALUES

The majority of Pine Lake residents own their homes, with 60% of housing stock owned, 32% rented, and 7%
vacant according to 2019 ACS Estimates. Since 2010, the proportion of vacant units has steadily decreased in the
post-recession years. Between 2010 and 2014, the proportion of owner-occupied units increased drastically. Since
2014, the proportion of renter-occupied units have increased, but homeownership still remains high.

Housing Occupancyin the City of Pine Lake |
ACS 5-Year Estimates 2010, 2014, & 2019 The Defalh County
100% , L , , ‘ Consolidated Plan.
for HUD Programs
was consutted in
the preparation
of the Pine Lake
‘Comprehensive Plan.
There were not any
programs, data, or
recommendations that
were determined to be
relevantio Pine Lake,
Data on Housing
Characteristics,
Housing Demand, and

R o ol e
B Owner-Occupied B Renter-Occupied & Vacant escibs et

Housing Types in the City of Pine Lake
ACS b-Year Estimates 2010, 2014, & 2019

Median Home Value*
; : 0% -
$172!100 S| QR 1 (SRS —————— e HEE 4
At over 75%, single-family detached housing
: 509 represents the vast majority of housingin -~
' Pine Lake. Since 2010, the proportion of other
0% housing types has consistently decreased.
30%
i = 2010
NG ot B B e 2014
) B 2019
Single-Family Duplex, Triptex and - Mid-Rise Multi-Family Large Multi-Family  Other Housing Types
ACS 5-Yeor Estimates. 2019 Detached Quadplexes {5-19 units) (20+ units) {Towahomes, etc )

Atlanta Regional Commission



HOUSING DEMAND & VALUES

Dates of construction for housing in Pine Lake reflect a range of historic periods and styles. The highest proportion
of housing stock was constructed in the 1940's soon after Pine Lake was marketed as a rural "resort” community
starting in 1935. Pine Lake regulates the size of housing through maximum square footage limitations to ensure
compatibility with the historic character of the residential areas. In the last decade, few new residential units have
been constructed compared to historic numbers. This is likely due to Pine Lake's limited space for new
development and desire to maintain its character. However, there was at least one new house built in 2020
according to the project management team.

Housing Built by Year as Percentage of Total Housing Units in the City of Pine Lake

Built 1939 or earlier
Built 1940 to 1949
Built 1950 to 1959

Built 1960 to 1949

Built 1970 to 1979

Built 1980 to 1989

Built 1990 to 1999

Built 2000 to 2009

Built 2010 to 2013

Built 7014 or later

ACS 5-Year Estimates 2019

0% 0% 10% 15% 20%

Housing Values in the City of Pine Lake, 2014 & 2019

$300,000 » O
_ On average, housing values in
$250.000 - $299.999 B _ Pine Lake have increased. The
= number of homes valued above
— ; $250,000 have increased
$200,000 - §249.999 B = compared to 2014 figures,
%" Consequently, the share of
$150000 - 199,99 SIS < homes valued below: $200,000
o S e e e e e e ﬁ have decreased from 2014
= lues, aside from the $50,000
100,000 - 149,99y SIS g W =
$ $ o e e s e il to $99.999 range. However, this
_ i é value range Oﬂly increased by
$50.000 - §99.999 B o L 2014 one home in 2019.
Less than $50.000 il
8SS an au, B

NumberofHomes> 0 100 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90

10| City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Atlanta Regional Cammission



INCOME

City of Pine Lake Median Household Income, 2010, 2014 & 2019

141311 —

$30,000
$20.000
AT 1| —

§0

Since 2010, the median income has
increased from below $40,000 to almost
$52,500 in 2019. The proportion of
households making between $100,000 and
$149,999 has drastically increased from
5% in 2010 to 23% in 2019. Furthermore,
the share of households making below
$35,000 has decreased from 36% to only
20%. The greatest share of households
made between $100,000 and $149,999,
followed closely by those making between
$35,000 and $49,999.

11| City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

ACS b-Year Estimates 2019

2014 2019

City of Pine Lake Household Income, 2010 & 2019
ACS b-Year Estimates 2010 & 2019

1%
i Less than $10,000 “
B $10,000 to $14.999
& §15,000 to $24.999
m §5,000 to $34.999
= §35,000 to $49.999
= $50,000 to $74.999
m §75.000 to $79.999
= $100,000 to $149,999
m $150,000 0 199,999

Atlanta Regiona! Commission



EMPLOYMENT

What Jobs do Pine Lake Residents Do?
Census OnTheMap 2018

Retail Trade R L R C U T s 1

ACCQH@B]G@H’(]DH aﬂd g[}(}é SENECBS . e e 6’{

EE

Educational Services = 5l

Health Care and Social Assistance ; 41

Administration & Support, Waste Management and Remediation

Transportation and Warehousing o A

Manufacturing

Public Administration

Construction B 17

What Jobs Are Available in Pine Lake?
Census OnTheMap 2018

Retail Trade s /[

Construction

Educational Services

Health Care and Sosia{Assistaace
Finance and Insurance [ 7
Professional, Scientific, and Technical... B 7

Accommodation and Food Services ?

12 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Atlanta Regional Commission



This page intentionally left blank.

13 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Atlanta Regional Commission






COMMUNITY.VISION

COMMUNITY INPUT OPPORTUNITIES

The Pine Lake Comprehensive Plan Update process was guided by a Steering Committee comprised of citizens,
local business owners, elected officials, and city staff. The Steering Committee met on multiple occasions,

providing direction and feedback at key points in the process. Meetings were advertised through the city's website
and through posted notices.

Steering

Committee

Meeting #1 PEES

; { 1 5 Steering

JAN  [me  IMAR  [APR  comi. [AUG  [OCT
Public Hearing ~ § Survey Released | Steering Virtual Public el 78 City Council City Council
at City Council Committee Meeting Public Hearing  § Adoption
Meeting #1 Meeting #2 #1

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT TIMELINE

16 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Atlanta Regional Commission



COMMUNITY FEEDBACK

New Survey! Survey

Steering Committee Public Meeting

One of the fundamental responsibilities of local government is planning - a
word used to describe how a community shapes and guides growth and

development. Updating the comprehensive plan offers communities the

Between February and July, two surveys were provided
through Pine Lake's Publiclnput webpage which
included a series of questions covering a wide range of
topics from natural and environmental rescurces to
housing. Nearly 120 people responded in total - the
majority of those respondents were 250 years old,
white, female homeowners who have lived in Pine Lake
for <10 years. The most popular description of Pine
Lake described the community as “a slice of heaven in
the middle of DeKalb County” and positioned it as a
"suburban nature preserve [and] open and accepting
community with [al cultural arts and an environmental
focus” - over half (63%) of respondents rated their
quality of life in Pine Lake as "High” with only 7%
rating is as "Low.” However, several respondents also
remarked on the racial homogeneity of its residents
and elected officials. The ample natural rescurces,
friendly active community, and committed elected
officials were cited as Pine Lake's top assets while
fiscal sustainability, economic development, and
community inclusion were listed as the most pressing
challenges.

A virtual public meeting was held on April 28 to
discuss the City of Pine Lake's current and future

16 | City of Pinc Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

needs. In addition to soliciting the identification of the
city’s assets and challenges, attendees were asked a
series of questions covering the same wide range of
topics included in the survey. Overall, attendees
described Pine Lake as a small, quirky village,
welcoming to artists and nature lovers alike. However,
attendees also acknowledged the size of the community
poses some challenges with regard to financial
sustainability and the economic development of its
commercial district.

Natural & Environmental Resources

Unsurprisingly, Pine Lake - the city’s namesake - was
identified as the most significant natural and
environmental resource, The wetlands surrounding the
lake as well as Snapfinger Creek were also identified in
equal measure and their importance in maintaining the
lake’s water guality highlighted, However, the city’s tree
canopy was also identified by several people as a
significant resource that deserves continued municipal
protection and a discussion of additional opportunities
for urban agriculture within the city were discussed at
the public meeting.

Atiarta Regionat Commission



COMMUNITY FEEDBACK

Historic & Cultural Resources

Pine Lake and its associated Beach House, as well as
the beach and surrounding wetlands, were identified as
the most significant historic and cultural resource.
However, the former church that currenlty houses the
Police Station, Courthouse and Council Chambers and
the Clubhouse was also identified and a desire to see it
preserved and repurposed emphasized. The Art Wall,
Monarch Garden, and Frances Manuel Ortega Memorial
were mentioned by some respondents as unique
elements that speak to the true character of Pine Lake.

Future Development

Rockbridge Road was identified as the primary area
future development should be located, especially the
area adjacent to the post office. Many respondents
indicated a desire to see mixed-use development along
this corridor and the addition of a variety of destination
businesses. A desire to see vacant lots along Poplar
Road developed was shared by some and denounced by
others.

Economic Development

50% of respondents visit Pine Lake’'s Commercial
District for government services — the other 50% are
divided between Other (20%), Shopping (13%],
Automobile Service and Repair [10%]), and Restaurants
[7%). Respondents identified business diversity, multi-
modal access, and a cohesive appearance as the
primary improvements that need to be made to

encourage resident use of the district. However, a
number of respondents also indicated a need to
support existing local businesses with regular city-
sponsored activities within the district.

Transportation

The majority of respondents indicated Pine Lake's
transportation system is adequate with one exception
— 42% ranked their satisfaction with road conditions as
“Below Average.” Several areas throughout the area
were identified as dangerous for pedestrians and/or
bicyclists (e.g., Clubhouse Drive at Rockbridge Road
and Dogwecod Road and intersection of Beaver Road
and Park Road]. Finally, the addition of street calming
measures along Park Drive and Lakeshore Drive were
requested.

Housing

Respondents were ultimately split between the need for
more affordable housing [48%), senior housing (51%],
and mixed-income housing [(50%) through the survey,
though mixed-income housing was identified as the
primary housing need during the public meeting,
However, when asked to identify Pine Lake's most
important housing need, a number of respondents
indicated a desire to see upgrades to existing multi-
family properties through code enforcement and tax
incentives. A desire to see the construction of new,
low-income housing as well as higher homeownership
rates and lower property taxes was expressed by

respondents.

17 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Attanta Regicnal Commission



&

b




BACKGROUND

The City of Pine Lake was established as a rural
“resort” community - a fishing and camping retreat for
Atlanta’s working class - during the early 1930s. It
was incorporated on December 27, 1937. According to
2019 ACS estimates, the City of Pine Lake included 386
households, comprised of 749 residents in a geography
that covered 161 acres, or 0.25 square miles. Given the
historic development patterns that would allow for the
creation of lots as small as 2,000 square feet (20" x
1007}, the City has retained a compact, village-type feel.
Though the majority of the residential area of the city
lacks sidewalks, the grid-network of streets
nonetheless creates a walkable netwark. This ties into
a trail system that connects to the lake for which the
community is named.

Common themes arise - throughout subsequent plan
updates and numerous public meetings - that point
back to the quality of life enjoyed by residents of the
community. There is consensus that the physical form
of the City coupled with the attendant environmental
beauty create a strong sense of place. The community
has attracted neighbors that share common interests in
arts, culture and placemaking - preserving the unique
and individualistic character that has drawn them there.
However, the community is also quick to point out that
the elements that make the community special, also
result in challenges.

The City is geographically small, and for several years
it has struggled with issues of annexation. Concerns
are consistently voiced about whether annexation would
change the dynamic of the community, though there is
a desire to expand the commercial district [or at least
commercial businesses] to provide greater services.
Citizens voiced concerns that the current services do
not match the needs of the community, nor do they
generate sufficient revenue to alleviate a significant tax
burden on residents.

The houses are small. Largely due to the legacy of the
City's histery as a rural “resort” community, many
residential units retain a cottage type feel. Though
houses have been renovated and enlarged over time,
the City does enforce maximum square footage
restrictions for residential units, and does encourage
the development of “tiny houses” that are compliant
with building codes. However, concerns have been
voiced about whether the small houses, along with
average public schools, may discourage families with
children from living in the community.

Nonetheless, this doesn’'t necessarily make
conversations about growth any easier. Previous
Comprehensive Plans have identified the need for
growth in the community. Whether this happened

19| City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Attanta Regionat Commission



BACKGROUND

through annexation or infill development, the growth
hasn't really occured. The City has completed updates
to regulations for commercial and mixed use
developments, The City has also been working with
GDOT and DeKalb County to implement corridor
improvements along Rockbridge Road. Within the next
5 years of this Comprehensive Plan Update, the City
may experience greater opportunity for new
development along Rockbridge Road that would fulfill
some of the new retail and service uses desired hy the
community.

The City of Pine Lake may have to deal more directly
with issues of annexation as the potential for new cities
in DeKalb County encroach upon the existing city limits.
There may be limited opportunities for the expansion of
municipal boundaries in the future, should the
incorporation of new cities and the expansion of
existing cities take in surrounding neighborhocds and
commercial centers. Expanded municipal boundaries
would bring in additional opportunities for revenues and
resources, but would also demand additional services.
In addition to thinking about the practical implications
of annexation, the City could also benefit from a
thoughtful and deliberate approach to an engagement

strategy for surrounding businesses and neighborhoods.

The City’s own citizens may be the best ambassadors

20 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

to the neighbors to build a greater sense of common
purpose in this area.

One of the key services provided by the City is their
police staff. Pine Lake still struggles with a reputation
for aggressive policing - mostly a legacy from many
years ago. The reality is that police department has
made significant changes over the last two decades
resulting in a greatly improved relationship with the
community. Also, Pine Lake police carry out code
enforcement functions within the City, and concerns
have been expressed about equal and balanced
enforcement.

There is a recognition for a greater need for diversity
within the community, and building stronger
relationships with adjacent neighborhoods. To build on
their strengths and overcome their challenges, the
community will need to embrace everything from
policing to placemaking to ensure the success of their
endeavors. lIssues, opportunities and policies have
been developed as a part of this Comprehensive Plan
Update to address the strengths and challenges of the
community, and provide a guide for decision-making in
the next 5-years.

Atiarta Regional Commissien



ISSUES

i . Pme {ake struggtes te be f;nanmally sustamable requ nng rela’ﬂvelyh gh {evels cf pmperty taxes_ ‘
= mreturnfurtheserwcesdescred bythecommumty o _ , .
" o Limited commercial deve opmentwathm the c:ty 5 houadanes premdes iizmted pmperty tax
i revenuetathemty - L e
o o The limited number sf commercaat pareets makes :tdn‘f;cuu to pmv de the 19cai busmesses
. des;red hyreSidents W . : . o
- . Pme Lakestitl stmggles w:th a reputatwn for aggressave ttci(etmg thnugh for the {ast twenty

_ ~ yearsthe police departmenthas made srgmf!cant changes o address this cancem and afe
tamm;ttedtocontmuatlyimpmvmg s e

- f.'- Many res;dents w;th schﬁni age chﬂdren chouse eptmns otherthan the tucal ssheoi system :j' i

i | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update _ hitanta Regionat Commission




72 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Atlanta Regional Commission




This page intentionally left blank.

23 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Attanta Regional Commission






COMMUNITY ASSETS

i = g ~
A 5 £ & %, i
= o 2 N e affsgg
= = s, N (o e,
7 = d{%ﬁ / ~ %, Uss;
= & s @%
5 3 =
; ; i
by  Hairgton™
%,
'/, £
"gf’ gmge Di.-.:m.;..-
b Watlind
2 o 2 Orehighpess
i S Dablige o F z
=N
=
=
g frent S
. G
0l Front St g
=
Plum Grgi o
&
= =4
- 5
ke
2
= Randalymod Gt
2
z
=
3
Rt patoinete
Rue Sagy Chartle, G
% riey Pl E Wizte o
= =
&2 =
- iy
Rue g, .
5 .
"%, &
2 o o i
w Waodeypgs Manar g, V4 Cottier Watk
0 0.25 MILES

5 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Atlanta Regionat Commission



COMMUNITY CONCERNS

aresioid £, =) 5 .
L = -y, X % Hairsgs,
-8 4 - “ Sloy
= I o7 5 = Cine. .
= Yo & & S
= r{,? £ E’ ﬁ/é
- &
- & ,3"\;91
. s
> C%"f@&c Hatrepon™
égf?
“y,
; Risige Dr ]
¥ il
% .......... = = Oichiddpes
3 = = E =
% £ oz =S e
Dahliz Br = g
S King O =
Parklr = e
mﬁhm\iﬁi
dfontste B _ 3
ol ol 5 4
2 %’g o . Urcharg 1, s
= ! - oy « / =
i : Lakesiigre 2 ; s
= %
forg
Y}ﬁk,feff 1 : =
PINE LAKE
Dogwood Rd Plom Drep
g &
£ . E
& = = E
?(2_ F Forrest kg
Randatwood C1
que Aot
Rug Sa, ptay y
«M% Charllay py = Higg, )
conomic Develooment = = inirestructire Maintenance iy
p g — = £ s
é‘lﬁg‘% 5 ‘5" (é;)
% ' . VA0 Collor Wt
0 ( 0.25 MILES

26 | City of Pinc Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Attanta Regionat Commission



This page intentionally left blank.

27 1 City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Atlanta Regional Commission






MEAKI

> 2
/s c:) Q’Q:‘&
5
N
%,
‘%7( i
4
“z
. G
k)

% §
2 T
2 ok

0
% W
: hshiey L,

Village Square Ln

ROCKBRIOGE RD

19{1pard€ross§ggg_t Bl

o enprg Cmsw

N Wacd;,resr z\r’am, o

CHARACTER AREA

Residential

Aoy ffee{( G

i ’i{[.l;fﬂﬁd I

fsheﬁﬂéfﬂfuak

o
2wy PSR

Gak Hitl Cir

- Sak g

Spring Dr .

Water - Wetland Transitional Buffer

29| City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Orchid Dr

s
o
s

=
-

Bahiia Dt

PINE LAKE

Degwaod Rd

Clubhousa Or

b ‘?ine Br

lubhouse i

LR

Ridge Dr ;

Chartley Py

Iris Rg

Hemlock Or

Forrest Rd

'hmﬁx
707

\(‘3‘:\;

é}@ﬁf{fﬁ&‘;;{f i.’,’

Keigis,
Yo

Aberdgen o

fherdeen Ln

Osage 1

g waspety

: S:;:!:’E;_raf@

f(amfey g,-.

B
{/J:%"Q

Eberline €t

Haliick Way

Randalwood Dr

Randatwand U

=R
d E;i‘_\*«’i\f\s“aq“‘d

The Character Area Map is & representation of the
community's vision for future development, and
redevelopment, within the city. For each Character Area,
a narrative describing the appropriate land uses,
desired development patterns, and implementation

strategies is included, as well as representative pictures
of the type and style of development desired. It should
be noted that the Character Area Map does not change
the current zoning of any property but is intended to
guide policy decisions for the next five years.

Atlanta Regional Commission



The City of Pine Lake was established as a rural
“resort” community for Atlanta during the early 1930s,
and incorporated on December 27, 1937. At that time,
this area of DeKalb County was largely rural and land
was sold in lots as small as 20 feet by 100 feet (2,000
square feet). Many of the lots were used for little more
than the placement of tents. The closely placed small
cottages that were initially constructed were vacaticn
homes for Atlanta residents who would come out to
swim, fish, and socialize. As the area became more
suburban after Warld War Il, conventional homes were
constructed for full-time use, but Pine Lake maintained
its rural "resort” character despite the development of
larger homes and landscaped lawns.

Preserve existing singte family homes.

The City has retained a residential village atmosphere
and many homes have been rencvated in recent years.
According to 2019 ACS estimates, the City is comprised
of 417 housing units, with almost 60% owner-occupied
and about 32% renter occupied - most of the City is
zoned for residential use only. During the
Comprehensive Plan update, the character of the
residential community was identified as one of the
leading reasons that Pine Lake remains a desirable
place to live. The legacy of its early 20th century

" resort roots has created a character that is
unique among neighboring communities in central
DeKalb.

“rural

DESIRED DEVELOPMENT PATTERNS & IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES

Encourage restoration of aging homes with historic character.

Promote new single-family residential development with character that is compatible with existing development.

Protect existing tree canopy and vegetation.

Adhere to best practices for site development and stormwater management when constructing infill residential

development.

Utilize a balanced approach to code enforcement to maintain quality development and community character.

Maintain existing community and recreation resources in a manner that is compatible with the residential

character of the area.

 PRIMARY LAND USES

Single family housing development

Limited institutional land uses, primarily existing
community facilities, such as the Clubhouse, Beach
House, and Police Station/Courthouse/Council
Chambers

Recreational uses, primarily existing facilities such
as the public beach, tennis courts, playground, etc.

30 1 City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Pocket parks, where appropriate
Community art, where appropriate
Gardens, for both personal and community use

Atlanta Regional Commission



Commission

Atlanta Regiona!

| City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update



COMMERCIAL

The Commercial Area of Pine Lake is intended to blend
retail office and limited mixed-use development. This
area is designed to accommodate stores that will
provide goods and services to the local community and
the neighborhoods that immediately surround Pine Lake.
It is oriented toward neighborhood commercial uses.

in areas where mixed-use development is determined to
be appropriate, 25% of the project must be comprised of
non-residential uses. Regulations within the commercial
area provide additional development incentives for
implementing environmentally sensitive site design
measures, and emphasize protection of adjacent
residential areas from noise, nuisance ar light pollution,
Design criteria include consideration for architectural
controls, inclusion of greenspace and community
gathering areas.

E
£
|

32 | City of Pinc Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

DESIRED DEVELOPMENT PATTERNS & IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES

Atlanta Regional Commission



TRANSITIONAL BUFFER

The Transitional Buffer Area between the Commercial and Residential Character Areas includes a mixture of
neighborhood service uses with higher density residential development that could include townhomes, live-work
units, and some single-family residential development. Height limitations allow for transition between the
commercial and residential areas of Pine Lake while protecting the residential character of the city.

DESIRED DEVELOPMENT PATTERNS & IMPLEMENTATION STRA’TEGIES

33 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Attanta Regional Commissicn



The Lake is a landmark and focal point for many
community events including the annual LakeFest, held
each October. The City has made significant investments
in ensuring the environmental quality of the lake and
surrounding areas. An investigation in 2003 discovered
that the primary source of lake contamination came
from Snapfinger Creek, which feeds the lake. Water
from the creek was diverted from entering the flume
that feeds the lake. The lake has been clean since the
diversion, leaving rainfall to maintain the water levels.
The lake can become the cornerstone feature for
attracting new businesses and residents to Pine Lake.
Because of its significance to community identity, it is
given its own character area.

34 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Attanta Regional Commission



This page intentionally left blank.

35 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Atianta Regional Commission






TRANSPORATION PROJECTS

DeKalb County is jointly updating its comprehensive
transportation and development plan under one process
known as the DeKalb 2050 Unified Plan. Plan adopticn
is slated for early 2022. A more updated
transportation projects affecting Pine Lake will be
available once this unified plan is complete.

list of

The 2014 DeKalb County Comprehensive Transportation
Plan is the county’'s most recently adopted plan. It
identifies priority transportation projects for the County
and its cities. The City of Pine Lake does not have a
list of projects because no projects are more than 20%

contained by the City. The multi-modal corridor project
along Rockbridge Road (Project 1640] does fall partially
within the City.

Project 1640 is the Rockbridge Road Multimodal
Corridor Improvements - Phase |. This includes
operational improvements, including a center turn lane,
along Rockbridge Road. Plans also call for bicycle and
pedestrian improvements. This project is programmed
to run from Memorial Drive (SR 10) to Stone Mountain-
Lithonia Road. Rockbridge Road improvements are
currently under construction.

grms st

e DR 0

T

DEKALB COUNTY

.{ﬁsf 3
€ AUSPORIATIDE

e PROGRESS THRAOUGH UNITY

MAP 20
PINE LAKE PROJECTS

= = County Boundaries

Flis

Project Type

Roadway Corridor

Multimodal Corridor
O Intersection __ik 5
€ Bicycle/ Pedestrian ! Cities
€1® GDOT Funded*

* Partially/fully GDOT funded

e Study Network

e EXPIESSWAYS

L HHARSTON B

oy,

Source. Transpartation Plan rf‘l
Prepared by Ki imfey-Horn andﬁssﬂdaies inc.

e
e

i
L

v“" v,

o

June 2014
IMiles
0.25 o5

37 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Atlanta Regional Commission






BROADBAND ACCESS

High-speed internet access is critical to education,
businesses, and other aspects of daily life. The
coronavirus pandemic stressed the need for more
robust broadband connectivity for those who began
working, schooling, and engaging with city processes in
a virtual environment. Parts of the state of Georgia still
struggle with broadband access. Specifically, 10% of the
state does not receive high-speed internet services.
Fortunately, 98% of DeKalb County has access to
broadband according to 2019 data from the Federal
Communications Commission [FCC) and the Georgia
Broadband Center. Broadband serves the entire City of

Broadband Status
~ = Served

Sawe

Unserved (Not Shown)

No Locations

Data Source: Georgia Broadband
Deployment Initiative, 2019

I
Ys MILES

39 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Pine Lake, excluding the lake itself, and thus, this plan
does not include an action plan for broadband service
deployment.

City officials should take necessary steps to achieve
state certification as a Broadband Ready Community or
designation of facilities and developments as Georgia
Broadband Ready Community Sites. The Georgia
Department of Community Affairs [DCA] provides more
information on these certifications on its website:
https://broadband.georgia.gov/
broadband-community-application-information.

Attanta Regional Commission



COMPUTER ACCESS

Despite its widespread broadband service, a significant
portion of the population in and surrounding Pine Lake
does not have access to necessary computers.
Specifically, 8.1% of households in the census tract
encompassing Pine Lake have no computer according
to 2019 ACS estimates.

Computer Access
Percent of Population 18-84 with No Computer
i o

Data Source: American Community
Survey 5-Year Estimates, 2019

I I ]
0 [/ Y2 MILES

Since the onset of the pandemic, DeKalb County and its
various partners provided necessary computers to fill
this need for families with children. DeKalb programs
that lend laptops include Virtual Career Academy, the
Virtual Village platform, and the County library system.!

_.-
Lol
=
-

ol

1. Stane, Adam. “08A: How DeKalh County Is Trying fo Bridge the Digital Divide.” StateTech, March 79, 2071,

40 | City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

Atlanta Regionai Commission



This page intentionally left blank.

41| City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update Atlanta Regional Commission



P
Lot
=
o~
=
=)
(=
o
(=
led

G e B N e

8 ¥3LdVH.




REPORT OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS 2016-2021

Implement the new commercial zoning regulations to develop

businesses along Rockbridge Road. GNP Adapted 2015.
Develop a long-term annexation plan for the City. COMPLETED Mapped possible annexation areas and prioritized areas.
Established Municipal Arts Panel (MAP). Established local grant fund {between local
Develop and implement a community arts/ public arts master COMPLETED gov't and bussinesses) that is awarded annually to local artists. Created public arts
plan for the city policy and designated two spaces for displaying public art. Created public art page on
city website highlighting historical and current local art.
: ; Established Municipal Arts Panel (MAP). Established Rockbridge Opportunity Kick
Supprt the development of commurity ats programming to COMPLETED Starters (ROKS] with a primary goal to use the arts to support community economic

support community economic development.

COMMUNITY.FACILITIES AND SERVICES (CFS)

Work with GDOT and DeKalb County to implement corridor

development,

improvements on Rockbridge Road (Project #1640). UNDERWAY Tutermmpet A A4 Seileall
Work toward the goal of providing 24-hour police services i
through the local police department, CANCELED See CFS 02 Redefined in 2021 CWP.
Undertake Improvements to the tennis courts CANCELED Proposed crowdsourcing efforts did not occur.
Update and expand gateway and wayfinding signage UNDERVUAY See CFS 13,
throughout the community

: e . Lack of public interest for pursuing effort with no school facilities located within city
Sl wES o explore thy FO.SS“HM} o devetuplng . CANCELED limits, increased home schooling, and lack of interest from surrounding community
charter school that could serve the Pine Lake community.

and DeKalb County School System.

Explore the creation of additional community level committees Established Municipal Arts Panel [MAP), Stewards for Environmental Education and
to address issues such as development, arts and culture, and COMPLETED Design [SEED), Rockbridge Opportunity Kickstarter (ROKS), and Seniors and Law

elder affairs

Enforcement Together (SALT).

43 1 City of Pine Lake 2021 Comprehensive Plen Update

Atlanta Regionat Commission



e ot et
o,




COMMUNITY WORK PROGRAM 2022-2026

Organize annual clean up along Rockbridge Road with

Staff Time, $500 for garbage bags and

COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND SERVICES (CFS)

meetings.

ED 01 residents and business owners. ROKS water and snacks for volunteers
Create sense of place on Rockbridge Road including i ; ;

ED 02 benchs, display banners, mural, and "Pale At project. ROKS, City Council Staff Time, Donated Funds, General Fund
Organize annual Community and Business Owners )

R D get-together, starting with BBQ in Paplar Park in 2021, ROKS, Staff Staff time, >§1.500
Increase participation of business owners joinin? or

ED 04 | attending Rockbridge Opportunity Kick Starters [ROKS) ROKS Staff Time

. . . Funds have been allacated to this
CFS | Work with GDOT and DeKalb County to implement corri- e A
: : : Staff, GDOT, DeKalb County | project, including a TE grant transferred
0 dor improvements on Rockbridge Road (Project #1640). from Pine Lake to DeKalb Courly
CKS | Increase Seniors and Law Enforcement Together [SALT) City Council, Police e
07 membership and expand activities. Department fern
CFS | Update and expand gateway and wayfinding signage . . ,
03 | throughaut the communit City Council Capital Improvement Fund ($20,000)
CFS | Develop new Poplar Park into a community gathering and ROKS, Volunteers, Staff, | Capital Improvement Fund, Grant Funds,
U4 event space. City Council Donated Funds
CFS | Develop future service delivery and funding policies City Council, Staff, Volun- ity Council and Staff Time, Consultants
05 | through analysis of City operating functions and budget. teers, possibly Consuttants | ($2.000 - §10,000)
CFS | Follew-up on Community Conversations to develop a plan City Council, Staff, City Council and Staff Time, possible
06 | tostrengthen the “One City, Many Yoices," principles. Volunteers General Fund ($5,000 - $10,000)
CFS . . - City Council, Staff. possi- i N
W Develop five-year capital community improvement plan. h:yytofl::ﬂantsa = g?ﬂﬁﬂ?ﬂnfe Consulants ($5,000
F _ ‘ A City Council. Staff. possi- | SPLOST Funds, Capital Improvement
VR Begin implementation of five-year capital plan. RESBUIEL, 9l 0S8 Funds, Storm Water Utility, Grant and
08 bly Consultants Loan Funds
i ltant
0 . o City Councl, Staf, Staff Tlme., Consultants ($10,000).
Complete dam maintenance and repair project. Construction covered by Stormwater

09 Consultants. N

Utitity and Grant and Loan Funds.

45 | City of College Park 2621 Comprehensive Plan Update

Atlanta Regional Commission



Al

Atlanta Regional Commission




CITY OF PINE LAKE
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
August 10, 2021
7:00 PM
Council Chambers
459 Pine Drive Pine Lake, GA

Call to Order at 7:00PM by Mayor Melanie Hammet. Present — Mayor Melanie Hammet,
Mayor pro tem Jean Bordeaux, and Council members Tracey Brantley, Brandy Beavers

(electronically) and Augusta Woods. Also, present were Acting City Administrator Peggy
Merriss, Administrative Coordinator Missye Varner, Chief Sarai Y’Hudah-Green and City
Attorney Susan Moore. Council member Brandy Hall was not in éttendance.

Announcements/Communication

Council member Woods announced that ROKS (Rockbndée Opportunity Kl\‘ék -Start) met
regarding moving forward with art ptans for the busaness corndor and are working with
business owners for their ideas and concems

Mayor Hammet communicated that the reason for the unusual conflgurahon of the court room
for the meeting is due to concerns regarding the increase in COVID-19 Delta Variant cases.
The Mayor stated that many hospitals in the metro area are becoming overloaded with new
cases and that the arrangement for tonlght S meetmg is an effort to mitigate contact risk.

The Mayor presented Actmg City Admlnzstrator Memss with a floral arrangement and a
birthday card from her, Clty Council and Staff in apprecratton for her dedication during her
tenure with the City. = . '

Adoptlon of Agenda

Mayor Hamn{ét.gamended the.:a_genda by\ adding “Policies for Council Meetings in Person” to
the agenda under New Business.

On a motion by Coun‘t'iii..memtaer Brantley, seconded Mayor pro tem Jean Bordeaux, and all
council members present*-veting “aye,” the agenda was adopted as amended.

CONSENT AGENDA
Adoption of the Minutes of the regular meeting of July 27, 2021

On a motion by Council member Woods, seconded Mayor pro tem Jean Bordeaux, and all
council members present voting “aye,” the consent agenda was adopted.



WORK SESSION
Presentation of the 2020 Audit — Jimmy Whitaker

Mr. Whitaker presented the 2020 Audit report for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020.
He also provided the independent auditor's report and the required reports in accordance with
government auditing standards for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020. Mr. Whitaker
indicated that the City’s audit was an unqualified opinion and that the City was working on the
correcting the material weaknesses. He added that the depreciation schedule had been
updated to reflect current conditions which removed one of the previous long-term findings. Mr.
Whitaker acknowledged that the Council had approved purchase of a fund accounting system
that would assist in resolving the remaining findings.

Mr. Whitaker addressed questions from the Mayor aﬁd Courto'ft

Copies of the Annual Financial Report and the Required Reports for the 2020 Audit are on file
in City Hall for review.

NEW BUSINESS

Approval of Tuition for Certified E‘F‘_‘t.ibl:_ic Manager Prograrn.
Recommend approval of tuition forthe_ Certified Public Manager Program.

On a motion by Council member Brant!ey;secopded by Mayor pro tem Jean Bordeaux, and all
council members present voting aye " the tuztlon for Chlef Green to attend the Certified Public
Manager Program was approved U g

Approval of SPLOST Prolects A
Recommend approvat to. deve!op Implementation plans for various SPLOST capital
projects. - 4 “ :

Ona rhotion by Mayor'pro tem J\ear}' Bordeau}(" second by Council member Woods, and all
council members present voting " aye,” development of implementation plans for various
SPLOST capital projects was approved

Policies for Counpll Meetlnge in person

Mayor Hammet opehed\the.d'iecussion by stating that Delta variant COVID-19 cases in
DeKalb County has risen-drastically. The Mayor asked for Council input on how comfortable
and safe they felt it was to continue to meet in person for the foreseeable future.

Mayor Pro tem Bordeaux said that she prefers to meet in person, however; from the last
meeting to now conditions with the virus have changed quickly. She also stated that the
courtroom was not spacious, but the new configuration created more space for social
distancing.



Council member Woods stated that the meeting spaces needed to provide space for people to
spread out and everyone needed to wear a mask to attend a meeting in public.

Council member Brantley said that she enjoys attending the meetings in person and if the City
can have court, then we should continue in person council meetings.

Council member Beavers said that she will do whatever the Mayor and Council decide but that
it was difficult to hear the meeting via Zoom in the courtroom. Ms. Beavers attended this
meeting via Zoom.

Acting City Administrator asked if moving the meetings to the Clubhouse was an option.

Mayor Hammet communicated that the next council meeting on August 315t will be an in-
person meeting at the Court House. She said that the meeting will proceed in the same
manner as tonight's meeting with the chairs and tables spread out more for better social
distancing.

Mayor Pro tem Bordeaux stated to make sure everyone feels comfortable because the
pandemic changes very fast and that she hopes to continue to meet in person.

Public Comments " :

Wilmel and Samantha Roberson, Owners of Prepared Inspectlons a new business at 4600
Rockbridge Road Suite D, introduced themselves to Mayor, Council and the community. This
business assists with planning for food mspec’uons ‘They stated that they are excited about
being in Pine Lake and look forward to berng a part of the business community.

Staff
There were'no staff reportd“*

Adm|nlstrat|ve Coordlnator Varner presented Actrng City Administrator Merriss with a floral
arrangement and a blrthday card from her City Council and Staff in recognition of her birthday.

Mayor and Clty Councu

Mayor Pro tem Bordeaux presented Mayor Hammet with a “Certificate of Recognition” from the
Georgia Municipal Association and the Carl Vinson Institute of Government for participating in
elected official training programs.

Information for “The Pine Lake News” eblast:
2020 Audit Report Presented to Council
The city's independent auditor, James Whittaker presented to Council the audited financial

statements for the year ending December 31st, 2020. The documents are available on the
website at www.pinelakega.net/city government/finance/year end financial reports.

3




SPLOST funded projects.

As part of the 2017 referendum enacting the SPLOST tax, the City developed and submitted a
list of projects, including the amount of SPLOST dollars allocated to each project. Council has
authorized the Acting City Administrator to proceed in determining details of several of these
projects in order to provide Council with a recommendation for how best to use these funds
within the framework of the original project list. Additional detail is contained in the agenda
package at www.pinelakega.net @city government/minutes/agendas.

Lake and Beach will be open for three more weeks.

The final day of the 2021 swimming season will be Monday-August 30th. The scheduled
sessions and capacity limits have gone very well. Th‘énks to all of you for your cooperation and
also many thanks to our Beach Monitor, Jason Murray. If you haven't met Jason, stop by, and
introduce yourself. He will brighten up your day. The hours are Thursday to Monday, with two
sessions each day: Morning from 7:00 AM to 11:00 AM and Afternoon from 4:00 PM - 8:00
PM. Capacity is capped at 75 for any given session.

Qualification period for November 2, 2021 mumcapal general electlon is from August 17,
2021, to August 19, 2021. =

A municipal general election shall be conducted on November 2, 2021, for the purpose of
electing three (3) City Council Members. If you are interested in running for one of these seats
the qualification period is from August 17th, 2021, t6 August 19th, 2021. Forms will be
available in City Hall from 8:30am - 4:30pm each day. The completed form must be notarized,
which may be done at City Hall. See “Notice of Election” at www.pinelakega.net for more
details. \

,/'

Adjournment On a motion b?’*zCo'unciI member Woods, seconded by Council member
Brantley, and all council ,membe'rs‘present voting “aye,” the meeting was adjourned at 7:58pm.

Missye Varner, Adm‘i‘nistrative/:Coordinator



PINE B
LAKE i
Gt NaBovral alitit

August 31, 2021

Atlanta Regional Commission
229 Peachtree Street NE
Suite 100

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

RE: Comprehensive Plan Update Submittal

The City of Pine Lake has completed an update of its comprehensive plan and is submitting it
with this letter for review by the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Department of
Community Affairs.

I certify that we have held the required public hearings and have involved the public

in development of the plan in a manner appropriate to our community’s dynamics and
resources. Evidence of this has been included with our submittal.

| certify that appropriate staff and decision-makers have reviewed both the Regional Water
Plan covering our area and the Rules for Environmental Planning Criteria (O.C.G.A. 12-2-8)

and taken them into consideration in formulating our plan.

If you have any questions concerning our submittal, please contact Peggy Merriss at 404-
999-4932 or peggymerriss@pinelakega.net.

Sincerely,

Mayor Melanie Hammet
City of Pine Lake

Enclosures

PO Box 1325 e Pine Lake, GA 30072 e 404-999-4901
www.pinelakega.net



Memo

To: Mayor and City Council
. . . S . W
From: Peggy Merriss, Acting City Administrator @"“‘W‘ﬁ
Date: August 30, 2021
Re: Employee Group Health Insurance Renewal

The purpose of this memorandum is to recommend that Council authorize the Mayor to execute an
annual contract to renew employee group health insurance prior to the renewal date of September
10, 2021.

Currently employee group health benefits are provided through Blue Cross/Blue Shield (BCBS).
The renewal proposal from BCBS increased premiums by eight percent (8%) along with increasing
the primary care physician and specialist office visit copay and the out-of-pocket limit. We have
received an alternate proposal from Humana that is an overall increase of 2%, including adding
vision benefits. The primary care physician and specialist office visit copay remain the same for
2022 and while the out-of-pocket limit does increase, it is half as much as the BCBS increase.

Our account executive believes that the network of hospitals and doctors for BCBS and Humana
are similar, and she has offered to work with staff to determine if their current doctors are part of the
Humana network. However, that won’t be complete by the time Council meets on Tuesday, August
31°' and our renewal must be completed by Friday, September 10, 2021 which is before your next
meeting on September 14, 2021. | believe that the Humana proposal is strong and that we will be
able to work with staff regarding the network of providers, but we need some time to do the
research.

A spreadsheet comparing the primary plan provisions will be provided at the meeting on Tuesday.
It is recommended that Council authorize the Mayor to sign the necessary documents to provide

employee group health benefits that is in the best interest of the City and staff before the
September 10, 2021 deadline.

PO Box 1325 e Pine Lake, GA 30072 e 404-999-4901
www,pinelakega.net



GEORGIA

Memo

To: Mayor and Council

. . . . - "
From: Peggy Merriss, Acting City Administrator &"W A thasat
Date: August 30, 2021
Re: Extension of Open Beach/Lake Season.

It is my understanding that Council will be considering extending the open hours for the Beach and
Lake through the end of September.

The additional unbudgeted cost for opening through September 27, 2021 on the same 2 session
per day, Thursday — Monday schedule would be approximately $600 per week or $2,400 through
September 27'. The costs include weekly water testing, port-a-john rental and staff costs.

We do have a staffing conflict for the Saturday, September 4™ afternoon session (4pm — 8pm) and
do not have time to find new staff. However, if Council desires to have a monitor, we could
consider a responsible volunteer to cover the time slot or remain closed for that session.

The approved plan to be open between the two holiday weekends (July 4" and Labor Day) worked
very well and the presence of a monitor at the afternoon sessions on Friday, Saturday and Sunday
was also successful.

PO Box 1325 e Pine Lake, GA 30072 e 404-999-4901
www,pinelakega.net



Memo

From: Peggy Merriss, Acting City Administrator {E‘ g T
Date: August 24, 2021
Re: Overview of Foodwell Grant Implementation Plan

Landscaping at Entrance to Beach House
Improvements to Beach Entrance

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide an overview of plans for implementation of the
Foodwell Grant program to add urban agriculture to an area east of the Beach House: to make
landscaping improvements to the front of the Beach House; and, to improve the entrance to the
beach.

Foodwell Grant Plan

The Foodwell Grant provided $10,000 for the City of Pine Lake to establish an urban agricultural
area. The selected location is a space to the east of the Beach House, primarily between the
existing wall and the lake. A conceptual plan is attached to this memo. The plan includes:

e Adding a rainwater cistern system to the northeast corner of the Beach House.

e Construction of a privacy screen around the garbage can storage and steps area.

e Removing approximately 10 feet of the wall starting at the southeast corner of the
Beach House to allow accessibility into the area.

e Installation of wood planks on top of the existing wall to allow for seating.
Working with MAP to install a mural or mosaic art piece to a section of the south side of
the wall.

e Improve picnic table areas south of the wall.

e Remove shrubbery to provide better lighting and growing area for existing trees and
remove shrubbery that is lethal for birds to digest.

e Onthe north side of the wall three fruit trees will be planted, there will be four areas for
berries, seven areas for herbs, one for flowers and an arbor with vines.

e Install pathways through the urban garden area.

PO Box 1325 e Pine Lake, GA 30072 e 404-999-4901
www.pinelakega.net



Landscape Improvements to the Beach House
In order clean-up the front and sides of the beach House and highlight the front entrance:

e Remove shrubbery to improve sightlines.
e Trim up limbs on cedar trees.

Beach Entrance
To improve sight lines, access and emergency access.

Trim shrubbery along southwest wall to 4 feet.
Remove bush in at the center base mural wall.

Redesign entrance to direct entry to the beach to one area and to improve accessibility.
Construct new entrance.

PO Box 1325 e Pine Lake, GA 30072 e 404-999-4901
www.pinelakega.net



fruit tree

berries / plum

herbs

herhs

fruit tree

herbs + flowers

herries

herbs

fruit tree

elderberry

privacy screen

trash

KEY
--- property line
—— easement
bt ot £ fence
gate
8 cistern
S —— feed line
[e] downspout
R T ankt] flow line
JAN triangle
5 £ @ existing tree/shrub

timher edge with
gravel under swings

herhs

berries

arhar with vines

berries

add mural or mosaic

along wall

add gravel pad with
timber edge for picnic
tables

add mural/mosaic

along wall in
collaheration with
MAP

herbs

herhs

BEACH HOUSE

footwash

Porch

GRAPHIC SCALE (FEET)

Conceptual Plan
October 2019

sheet

Prepared for: City of Pine Lake
Beach House

OUADES oF GREEN
PERMACULTURE




Building Department Services

Integrity. Improvement. Respect. Teamwork. Service

August 23,2021

Peggy Merriss
City of Pine Lake, GA

RE: Pine Lake Gazebo Inspection

Ms. Merriss,

Following your request, I have visited the site above to evaluate the structural integrity of
the gazebo. The following two items were noticed as a concern.

1. The floor decking is water soaked and molded from being covered with pine straw
and staying damp for a long period of time. These boards must be replaced along
with the water-soaked steps which are also covered in pine straw. In its current
condition the floor decking has decayed and is unsafe for usage.

2. The shingles over the two roof areas are dried up and water is coming through to
the post and roof framing. The roof system should be evaluated after the shingles
have been removed. If any of the roof decking is water soaked and/or moldy those
should be replaced too. The roof system in its current condition is unsafe.

Based on the field observations it is my opinion that the footings, grade beams, floor joist,
and post are in adequate condition.

Sincerely,

Deborah Nichols
Combination Building Inspector/ Building Plan Reviewer

dnichols@safebuilt.com
2635 Talley Street
Decatur, GA 30030



